

SENATE BILL No. 952

May 4, 2016, Introduced by Senators BOOHER, MARLEAU, MACGREGOR and ZORN and referred to the Committee on Outdoor Recreation and Tourism.

A bill to amend 1978 PA 368, entitled
"Public health code,"
by amending sections 12501, 12505, 12506, 12506a, 12506b, 12507,
12508, 12509, 12510, 12511, 12512, 12514, 12515, and 12516 (MCL
333.12501, 333.12505, 333.12506, 333.12506a, 333.12506b, 333.12507,
333.12508, 333.12509, 333.12510, 333.12511, 333.12512, 333.12514,
333.12515, and 333.12516), sections 12501, 12505, 12506, 12507,
12508, 12509, 12512, 12514, and 12516 as amended and sections
12506a, 12506b, and 12510 as added by 2004 PA 408, and by adding
sections 12502, 12505a, 12508a, 12508b, 12508c, 12508d, 12508e,
12508f, 12508g, 12508h, 12508i, 12508j, and 12508k; and to repeal
acts and parts of acts.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF MICHIGAN ENACT:

- 1 Sec. 12501. (1) As used in **THIS SECTION AND** sections ~~12501~~
2 **12502** to 12516:

1 (A) "ALTERATION TO A SEWAGE SYSTEM" MEANS THE MODIFICATION OF,
2 OR ADDITION TO, AN EXISTING SEWAGE COLLECTION, PUMPING, TREATMENT,
3 OR DISPOSAL SYSTEM OR A PORTION OF THE SYSTEM THAT AFFECTS THE
4 FLOW, CAPACITY, SYSTEM SERVICE AREA, OR RELIABILITY OF THE SYSTEM.

5 (B) "ALTERATION TO A WATER SYSTEM" MEANS THE MODIFICATION OF,
6 OR ADDITION TO, AN EXISTING WATERWORKS SYSTEM OR PORTION OF THE
7 SYSTEM THAT AFFECTS THE FLOW, CAPACITY, SYSTEM SERVICE AREA,
8 SOURCE, TREATMENT, OR RELIABILITY OF THE SYSTEM.

9 (C) ~~(a)~~ "Campground" means a parcel or tract of land ~~under the~~
10 ~~control of~~ OWNED OR LEASED BY a person, ~~in which sites~~ THAT HAS 3
11 OR MORE CAMPSITES THAT are DESIGNATED FOR RECREATIONAL UNITS AND
12 offered for the use of ~~BY~~ the public ~~or members of an organization,~~
13 either free of charge or for a fee. ~~, for the establishment of~~
14 ~~temporary living quarters for 5 or more recreational units.~~
15 Campground does not include a **MOBILE HOME PARK OR** seasonal mobile
16 home park licensed under the mobile home commission act, 1987 PA
17 96, MCL 125.2301 to ~~125.2349~~ 125.2350.

18 (D) "CAMPING CABIN" MEANS A RECREATIONAL UNIT THAT IS A HARD-
19 SIDED TENT OR SHELTER, IS LESS THAN 400 SQUARE FEET OF ENCLOSED
20 AREA, AND IS NOT ATTACHED TO THE GROUND BY A PERMANENT FOUNDATION
21 OR PERMANENTLY CONNECTED TO WATER, ELECTRIC, OR SEWER SERVICES.

22 (E) "CAMPSITE" MEANS A PARCEL OR TRACT OF LAND WITH A MINIMUM
23 OF 1,200 SQUARE FEET WITHIN A CAMPGROUND AT WHICH RECREATIONAL
24 UNITS OCCUPY THE PARCEL FOR A SPECIFIED PERIOD OF TIME WHILE
25 MAINTAINING A MINIMUM OF 4 FEET UNOBSTRUCTED PATHWAY AROUND EACH
26 RECREATIONAL UNIT. A CAMPSITE INCLUDES, BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO, A
27 FIXED LOCATION FOR AN INDIVIDUAL RECREATIONAL UNIT OR GROUP CAMPING

1 AREAS FOR MULTIPLE RECREATIONAL UNITS THAT ARE LIMITED TO 8 PEOPLE
2 PER SITE.

3 (F) "CAMPSITE SERVICE BUILDING" MEANS A LAVATORY BUILDING
4 DESIGNED AND INTENDED TO BE USED ONLY BY INDIVIDUALS OCCUPYING A
5 SINGLE CAMPSITE.

6 (G) ~~(b)~~—"Department" means the department of environmental
7 quality.

8 ~~——(c) "Local health department" means that term as defined under~~
9 ~~section 1105.~~

10 (H) "FUND" MEANS THE CAMPGROUND FUND CREATED IN SECTION
11 12506B.

12 (I) "GROUP CAMPGROUND SITE" MEANS AN AREA SET ASIDE WITHIN A
13 CAMPGROUND THAT IS RESERVED FOR USE BY 1 OR MORE RECREATIONAL UNITS
14 AT WHICH SITE LOCATIONS MAY VARY WITHIN THE GROUP CAMPING AREA OR
15 AT WHICH INDIVIDUAL CAMPSITES ARE GROUPED TOGETHER FOR THE PURPOSE
16 OF GROUP CAMPING.

17 (J) ~~(d)~~—"Mobile home" OR "MANUFACTURED HOME" means a structure
18 THAT CONSISTS OF MORE THAN 400 SQUARE FEET OF ENCLOSED AREA, IS
19 transportable in 1 or more sections, ~~which~~ is built on a chassis,
20 ~~and~~ IS designed to be used as a dwelling with or without permanent
21 foundation, when connected to the required utilities, and includes
22 the plumbing, heating, air conditioning, and electrical systems
23 contained in the structure.

24 (K) "MODERN CAMPSITE" MEANS A CAMPSITE AT WHICH WATER, FLUSH
25 TOILETS, AND WATER UNDER PRESSURE ARE AVAILABLE AT A SERVICE
26 BUILDING OR AT WHICH WATER OUTLETS AND SEWER CONNECTIONS ARE
27 AVAILABLE.

(l) "ONE-HUNDRED-YEAR FLOOD" MEANS A FLOOD THAT HAS A 1% CHANCE OF BEING EQUALED OR EXCEEDED IN ANY GIVEN YEAR.

(M) "ONE-HUNDRED-YEAR FLOODPLAIN" MEANS THE LAND AREA IMPACTED BY A 100-YEAR FLOOD.

(N) ~~(e)~~ "Person" means ~~a person as defined in section 1106 or a governmental~~ AN INDIVIDUAL, PARTNERSHIP, CORPORATION, ASSOCIATION, GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY, OR OTHER LEGAL entity.

(O) "PRIMITIVE CAMPSITE" MEANS A CAMPSITE AT WHICH WATER UNDER PRESSURE AND ELECTRICITY ARE NOT AVAILABLE.

(P) ~~(f)~~ "Recreational unit" means ~~a tent or vehicular type structure,~~ A UNIT primarily designed as temporary TRANSIENT OR SEASONAL living quarters for recreational, camping, or travel use. ~~, which either has its own motive power or is mounted on or drawn by another vehicle which is self powered.~~ RECREATIONAL UNIT DOES NOT INCLUDE A MOBILE HOME OR MANUFACTURED HOME USED AS A TEMPORARY OR PERMANENT DWELLING, RESIDENCE, OR LIVING QUARTERS. RECREATIONAL UNIT INCLUDES, BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO, ANY OF THE FOLLOWING:

(i) A CAMPING CABIN.

(ii) A tent. ~~means a collapsible shelter of canvas or other fabric stretched and sustained by poles and used for camping outdoors. Recreational unit includes the following:~~

(iii) ~~(i)~~ A travel trailer, TRAILER, OR POP-UP CAMPER, which ~~is a vehicular portable structure ,~~ IS mounted on wheels, IS DESIGNED TO BE TOWED BY A MOTOR VEHICLE, AND IS of such a size or weight ~~as not to~~ NOT require special highway movement permits. ~~when drawn by a vehicle, primarily designed and constructed to provide temporary living quarters for recreational, camping, or travel use.~~

~~1 (ii) A camping trailer, which is a vehicular portable
2 structure mounted on wheels and constructed with collapsible
3 partial sidewalls of fabric, plastic, or other pliable material
4 which fold for towing by another vehicle and unfold at the campsite
5 to provide temporary living quarters for recreational, camping, or
6 travel use.~~

7 (iv) ~~(iii)~~ A motor home, which ~~is a vehicular structure~~
8 **CONTAINS LIVING QUARTERS** built on a self-propelled motor vehicle
9 chassis ~~, primarily designed to provide temporary living quarters~~
10 ~~for recreational, camping, or travel use.~~ **AND ALSO INCLUDES A MOTOR**
11 **COACH OR BUS.**

12 (v) ~~(iv)~~ A truck camper, which **STRUCTURE** is a portable
13 ~~structure~~ **AND** designed to be loaded onto, or affixed to, the bed or
14 chassis of a truck. ~~, constructed to provide temporary living~~
15 ~~quarters for recreational, camping, or travel use. Truck campers~~
16 ~~are of 2 basic types:~~

17 ~~(A) A slide in camper, which is a portable structure designed~~
18 ~~to be loaded onto and unloaded from the bed of a pickup truck,~~
19 ~~constructed to provide temporary living quarters for recreational,~~
20 ~~camping, or travel use.~~

21 ~~(B) A chassis mount camper, which is a portable structure~~
22 ~~designed to be affixed to a truck chassis, and constructed to~~
23 ~~provide temporary living quarters for recreational, camping, or~~
24 ~~travel use.~~

25 ~~(v) A single sectional mobile home used only to provide~~
26 ~~temporary living quarters for recreational, camping, or travel use.~~
27 ~~Recreational unit does not include a mobile home used as a~~

~~permanent dwelling, residence, or living quarters.~~

(vi) A PARK MODEL, WHICH IS A TRANSPORTABLE UNIT ON A SINGLE CHASSIS THAT CONSISTS OF NOT MORE THAN 400 SQUARE FEET OF ENCLOSED AREA AND IS NOT FIXED TO THE GROUND BY A PERMANENT FOUNDATION OR PERMANENTLY CONNECTED TO WATER, ELECTRIC, OR SEWER SERVICES.

(vii) A TREE HOUSE, WHICH IS AN ELEVATED, HARD-SIDED TENT OR SHELTER AFFIXED TO A TREE.

(viii) A WATERCRAFT OR BOAT.

(ix) A MOTORIZED VEHICLE.

(Q) "SANITARY FACILITIES" MEANS ALL OF THE FOLLOWING:

(i) THE WATER SUPPLY AND ALL WATER DISTRIBUTION FACILITIES.

(ii) THE SEWAGE COLLECTION, SEWAGE TREATMENT, AND SEWAGE DISPOSAL FACILITIES.

(iii) SERVICE BUILDINGS OR SANITARY STATIONS.

(R) "SANITARY STATION" MEANS A FACILITY AT WHICH RECREATIONAL UNITS EQUIPPED WITH FRESHWATER STORAGE TANKS AND SEWAGE HOLDING TANKS ARE SERVICED.

(S) "SEASON" MEANS SPRING, SUMMER, FALL, OR WINTER.

(T) "SEASONAL CAMPSITE" MEANS A CAMPSITE DESIGNED AND INTENDED TO BE OCCUPIED FOR AN ENTIRE SEASON.

(U) "SEEPAGE PIT" MEANS A NONSEPTIC EFFLUENT ABSORPTION SYSTEM DESIGNED TO RECEIVE WATER AND GRAY WATER FROM SINKS, LAUNDRY, AND SHOWERS.

(V) "SERVICE BUILDING" MEANS A STRUCTURE OR PORTION OF A STRUCTURE THAT IS USED TO HOUSE WATER CLOSET, LAVATORY, OR SHOWER FACILITIES FOR MULTIPLE CAMPSITES.

(W) "SITE WATER CONNECTION" MEANS A DEVICE LOCATED AT A

CAMPSITE TO WHICH A RECREATIONAL UNIT MAY CONNECT TO SUPPLY POTABLE WATER TO THE UNIT AT THE RATE OF AT LEAST 1 GALLON PER MINUTE FOR EACH SITE WATER CONNECTION THAT SERVES A MOBILE HOME OR PARK MODEL RECREATIONAL UNIT, AND AT LEAST .5 OF A GALLON PER MINUTE FOR EACH SITE WATER CONNECTION THAT SERVES OTHER SITES.

(X) "TEMPORARY CAMPGROUND" MEANS A CAMPGROUND THAT OFFERS CAMPSITES FOR NOT MORE THAN 20 DAYS EACH YEAR.

(Y) "TEMPORARY CAMPSITE" MEANS A CAMPSITE OFFERED BY A CAMPGROUND AS AN ADDITIONAL OR OVERFLOW CAMPSITE ON A TEMPORARY BASIS FOR NOT MORE THAN 20 DAYS EACH YEAR.

(Z) "TENT" MEANS A COLLAPSIBLE SHELTER OF CANVAS OR OTHER FABRIC STRETCHED AND SUSTAINED BY POLES AND USED FOR CAMPING OUTDOORS. TENT INCLUDES A YURT, TEPEE, OR LEAN-TO.

(AA) "TRANSIENT CAMPSITE" MEANS A CAMPSITE DESIGNED AND INTENDED TO BE OCCUPIED FOR LESS THAN A SEASON.

(2) In addition, article 1 contains general definitions and principles of construction applicable to all articles in this code.

SEC. 12502. BEGINNING ON THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE AMENDATORY ACT THAT ADDED THIS SECTION, A PERSON SHALL NOT PLACE A MOBILE HOME OR MANUFACTURED HOME ON A CAMPSITE. THIS SECTION DOES NOT APPLY TO A CAMPSITE ON WHICH A MOBILE HOME OR MANUFACTURED HOME IS LOCATED ON THE DAY BEFORE THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE AMENDATORY ACT THAT ADDED THIS SECTION BUT ONLY AS LONG AS THAT MOBILE HOME OR MANUFACTURED HOME REMAINS UNMOVED FROM THAT CAMPSITE. IF A MOBILE HOME OR MANUFACTURED HOME THAT IS LOCATED ON A CAMPSITE ON THE DAY BEFORE THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE AMENDATORY ACT THAT ADDED THIS SECTION IS MOVED FROM THAT CAMPSITE, A PERSON SHALL NOT PLACE ANY

1 OTHER MOBILE HOME OR MANUFACTURED HOME ON THAT CAMPSITE.

2 Sec. 12505. (1) A person shall not begin to construct, alter,
3 or ~~engage in the development of~~ **DEVELOP** a campground **THAT WILL**
4 **RESULT IN MORE THAN \$10,000.00 OF TOTAL PROJECT COST** without first
5 obtaining a construction permit from the department. ~~Applications~~ **A**
6 **PERSON SHALL SUBMIT AN APPLICATION** for a construction permit ~~shall~~
7 ~~be submitted to the department~~ **ON A FORM PRESCRIBED BY THE**
8 **DEPARTMENT**, along with the fee as prescribed in section 12506a. The
9 ~~application~~ **APPLICANT** shall ~~contain~~ **INCLUDE ALL OF** the following **IN**
10 **AN APPLICATION SUBMITTED UNDER THIS SECTION:**

11 (a) A description of the proposed project.

12 (b) The name and address of the applicant.

13 (c) The location of the proposed project.

14 (D) **A SITE PLAN WITH 4 SETS OF PLANS DRAWN TO SCALE. THE**
15 **APPLICANT SHALL SUBMIT 3 SETS OF THE PLANS TO THE DEPARTMENT AND 1**
16 **SET TO THE LOCAL HEALTH DEPARTMENT THAT HAS JURISDICTION.**

17 (E) **A DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSED METHOD OF GARBAGE AND REFUSE**
18 **STORAGE AND DISPOSAL.**

19 (2) **A PERSON THAT CONSTRUCTS, ALTERS, OR DEVELOPS A CAMPGROUND**
20 **SHALL DO ALL OF THE FOLLOWING:**

21 (A) **ENSURE THAT THE CAMPGROUND IS NOT LOCATED WHERE IT MAY BE**
22 **DETRIMENTAL TO THE PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, AND WELFARE.**

23 (B) **ENSURE THAT THE CAMPGROUND IS NOT LOCATED ON TOP OF A**
24 **COMPLETED TYPE II LANDFILL AS DESCRIBED IN PART 115 OF THE NATURAL**
25 **RESOURCES AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION ACT, 1994 PA 451, MCL**
26 **324.11501 TO 324.11554.**

27 (C) **ENSURE THAT THE CAMPGROUND IS NOT LOCATED ON A COMPLETED**

1 HAZARDOUS WASTE DISPOSAL FACILITY AS DESCRIBED IN PART 111 OF THE
2 NATURAL RESOURCES AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION ACT, 1994 PA 451,
3 MCL 324.11101 TO 324.11153.

4 (D) EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED IN THIS SUBDIVISION, LOCATE
5 ALL OUTLETS TO THE WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM ABOVE THE ELEVATION
6 DEFINING THE 100-YEAR FLOODPLAIN. THIS SUBDIVISION DOES NOT APPLY
7 TO WATER OUTLETS CONSTRUCTED BEFORE THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE
8 AMENDATORY ACT THAT ADDED THIS SUBDIVISION.

9 (E) EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED IN THIS SUBDIVISION, LOCATE
10 THE TOP OF THE SITE SEWER CONNECTIONS ABOVE THE ELEVATION DEFINING
11 THE 100-YEAR FLOODPLAIN. THIS SUBDIVISION DOES NOT APPLY TO SEWER
12 RISERS CONSTRUCTED BEFORE THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE AMENDATORY ACT
13 THAT ADDED THIS SUBDIVISION.

14 (3) IF THE TOTAL PROJECT COST OF THE CONSTRUCTION, ALTERATION,
15 OR DEVELOPMENT OF THE CAMPGROUND IS MORE THAN \$20,000.00, THE
16 APPLICANT SHALL HAVE AN ENGINEER WHO IS LICENSED IN THIS STATE
17 PREPARE ALL PLANS FOR THE CAMPGROUND'S SANITARY FACILITIES OR FOR
18 ADDITIONS OR ALTERATIONS TO THE CAMPGROUND'S EXISTING SANITARY
19 FACILITIES.

20 SEC. 12505A. (1) A CONSTRUCTION PERMIT ISSUED UNDER SECTION
21 12505 IS NONTRANSFERABLE UNLESS THE DEPARTMENT CONSENTS IN WRITING
22 TO THE PERMIT TRANSFER. A CONSTRUCTION PERMIT EXPIRES 3 YEARS AFTER
23 ITS DATE OF ISSUANCE UNLESS THE DEPARTMENT GRANTS A 1-YEAR
24 EXTENSION.

25 (2) THE DEPARTMENT SHALL NOT INCLUDE DELAYS IN CONSTRUCTION
26 INCURRED BY REASON OF LITIGATION INCIDENT TO THE PLANNING OR
27 CONSTRUCTION OF A CAMPGROUND IN CALCULATING THE DATE A PERMIT

1 EXPIRES UNDER SUBSECTION (1). IF A PERMIT EXTENSION IS GRANTED
2 UNDER SUBSECTION (1), THE DEPARTMENT MAY REQUIRE REVISIONS TO THE
3 PLANS THAT WOULD BE REQUIRED FOR APPROVAL UNDER SECTIONS 12501 TO
4 12516 IF THE PLANS WERE BEING SUBMITTED AT THE DATE THE EXTENSION
5 IS GRANTED. THE DEPARTMENT SHALL LIST ANY CONDITIONS OR
6 STIPULATIONS FOR LICENSE APPROVAL ON THE CONSTRUCTION PERMIT.

7 Sec. 12506. (1) A person shall not operate a campground
8 without a ~~campground~~-license issued by the department, its agent or
9 representative, or a representative of a designated local health
10 department. ~~An~~ **A PERSON SHALL SUBMIT AN** application for a
11 campground license ~~shall be submitted to the department, its agent~~
12 or representative, or a representative of a designated local health
13 department, along with the license fee as prescribed in section
14 12506a.

15 (2) **A PERSON SHALL NOT OPERATE A TEMPORARY CAMPGROUND WITHOUT**
16 **A LICENSE ISSUED BY THE DEPARTMENT, ITS AGENT OR REPRESENTATIVE, OR**
17 **A REPRESENTATIVE OF A DESIGNATED LOCAL HEALTH DEPARTMENT. A PERSON**
18 **SHALL SUBMIT AN APPLICATION FOR A TEMPORARY CAMPGROUND LICENSE TO**
19 **THE DEPARTMENT, ITS AGENT OR REPRESENTATIVE, OR A REPRESENTATIVE OF**
20 **A DESIGNATED LOCAL HEALTH DEPARTMENT, ALONG WITH THE LICENSE FEE**
21 **UNDER SECTION 12506A.**

22 (3) ~~(2)~~ **THE PERSON SHALL INCLUDE ALL OF THE FOLLOWING IN AN**
23 ~~application shall contain the following.~~ **SUBMITTED UNDER THIS**
24 **SECTION:**

25 (a) The name and address of the applicant.

26 (b) The location of the campground.

27 (c) Information regarding physical facilities.

(4) ~~(3) The A~~ campground license ~~shall expire~~ **EXPIRES** on December 31 of **EACH YEAR OR** every third year if the annual renewal fee is paid or as stipulated on the license, whichever is sooner.

Sec. 12506a. (1) The fees related to campground regulation under this part are as follows:

~~—— (a) Construction permit fee for a new campground.. \$600.00.~~

~~—— (b) Construction permit fee for an addition, alteration, or modification of an existing campground.. \$225.00.~~

~~—— (c) Initial or annual renewal license fee for a new or temporary campground as follows:~~

~~(i) One to 25 sites..... \$75.00.~~

~~(ii) Twenty six to 50 sites..... \$100.00.~~

~~(iii) Fifty one to 75 sites..... \$125.00.~~

~~(iv) Seventy six to 100 sites..... \$150.00.~~

~~(v) One hundred one to 500 sites..... \$225.00.~~

~~(vi) More than 500 sites..... \$500.00.~~

~~(d) Late annual renewal license fee, after December 31..... \$100.00.~~

~~(e) License transfer fee..... \$75.00.~~

~~—— (2) The department may adjust the amounts prescribed in subsection (1) every 3 years by an amount determined by the state treasurer to reflect the cumulative annual percentage change in the Detroit consumer price index and rounded to the nearest dollar.~~

(A) CONSTRUCTION PERMIT FEES FOR A NEW CAMPGROUND ARE AS FOLLOWS:

1 (i) FOR A CAMPGROUND WITH FEWER THAN 50 CAMPSITES, \$225.00.

2 (ii) FOR A CAMPGROUND WITH 50 TO 100 CAMPSITES, \$600.00.

3 (iii) FOR A CAMPGROUND WITH 101 TO 500 CAMPSITES, \$1,500.00.

4 (iv) FOR A CAMPGROUND WITH MORE THAN 500 CAMPSITES, \$2,500.00.

5 (B) CONSTRUCTION PERMIT FEES FOR AN ADDITION, ALTERATION, OR
6 MODIFICATION OF AN EXISTING CAMPGROUND ARE AS FOLLOWS:

7 (i) FOR A PROJECT WITH A TOTAL COST OF LESS THAN \$10,000.00,
8 NO FEE UNDER THIS PART OTHER THAN A FEE COLLECTED BY A LOCAL HEALTH
9 DEPARTMENT UNDER SECTION 12510. EXCEPT AS PROVIDED IN SECTION
10 12508F(1), ALTERATIONS UNDER \$10,000.00 SHALL BE REPORTED TO THE
11 DEPARTMENT ON THE NEXT SCHEDULED APPLICATION FOR A CAMPGROUND
12 LICENSE REPORT.

13 (ii) FOR A PROJECT WITH A TOTAL COST OF \$10,000.00 TO
14 \$25,000.00, \$400.00.

15 (iii) FOR A PROJECT WITH A TOTAL COST OF MORE THAN \$25,000.00,
16 \$600.00.

17 (C) A CAMPGROUND OWNER MAY CHOOSE BETWEEN AN ANNUAL LICENSE OR
18 A 3-YEAR LICENSE. ANNUAL LICENSE FEES ARE AS FOLLOWS:

19 (i) FOR A CAMPGROUND WITH 3 TO 50 CAMPSITES, \$75.00.

20 (ii) FOR A CAMPGROUND WITH 51 OR MORE CAMPSITES, \$1.50 PER
21 CAMPSITE.

22 (D) A 3-YEAR LICENSE FEE IS THE APPROPRIATE ANNUAL LICENSE FEE
23 LISTED IN SUBDIVISION (C) MULTIPLIED BY 3.

24 (E) APPLICATION FEES ARE AS FOLLOWS:

25 (i) ANNUAL LICENSE APPLICATION FEE FOR A CAMPGROUND WITH 3 TO
26 50 CAMPSITES, \$25.00.

27 (ii) ANNUAL LICENSE APPLICATION FEE FOR A CAMPGROUND WITH 51

1 OR MORE CAMPSITES, \$50.00.

2 (iii) APPLICATION FEE FOR ANY 3-YEAR CAMPGROUND LICENSE,
3 \$0.00.

4 (2) THE DEPARTMENT SHALL INVOICE THE ANNUAL LICENSE RENEWAL
5 FEES FOR CAMPGROUNDS BY NOVEMBER 1. IF A PERSON OPERATING A
6 CAMPGROUND DOES NOT PAY THE ANNUAL LICENSE RENEWAL FEE BY JANUARY
7 31, THE PERSON SHALL PAY A \$100.00 LATE FEE, AND SHALL PAY AN
8 ADDITIONAL \$50.00 LATE FEE FOR EVERY MONTH AFTER JANUARY 31, FOR UP
9 TO 12 MONTHS, THAT THE FEE IS NOT PAID.

10 Sec. 12506b. (1) The campground fund is created in the state
11 treasury. ~~and shall be administered by the~~ **THE** department **IS THE**
12 **ADMINISTRATOR OF THE FUND FOR AUDITING PURPOSES.** The state
13 treasurer shall credit to the campground fund all fees collected by
14 the department under section 12506a and all money, gifts, and
15 devises received by the fund as otherwise provided by law.

16 (2) ~~The unencumbered balance remaining~~ **MONEY** in the fund at
17 the close of the fiscal year shall remain in the fund and shall not
18 ~~revert~~ **LAPSE** to the general fund.

19 (3) The **DEPARTMENT SHALL EXPEND** money ~~in~~ **FROM** the campground
20 fund ~~shall be expended~~ only as provided in this section. The
21 department shall use the fund to implement this part and to carry
22 out its powers and duties under sections 12501 to 12516. The
23 department shall not use the money in the campground fund for
24 inspections of any mobile home parks licensed under the mobile home
25 commission act, 1987 PA 96, MCL 125.2301 to ~~125.2349~~ **125.2350.**

26 (4) The department shall annually prepare a report containing
27 an accounting of revenues and expenditures from the campground

1 fund. This report shall include details of the departmental costs
2 and activities of the previous year in administering this
3 campground program. This report shall be provided to the senate and
4 house of representatives appropriations committees, the standing
5 committees of the senate and house of representatives with
6 jurisdiction over issues pertaining to natural resources and the
7 environment, and the senate and house of representatives fiscal
8 agencies.

9 Sec. 12507. Before ~~an application for a~~ campground license ~~is~~
10 ~~approved,~~ **BECOMES EFFECTIVE**, the department, its agent or
11 representative, or a representative of a designated local health
12 department shall determine that the campground contains facilities
13 ~~which~~ **THAT** meet the requirements prescribed in rules promulgated
14 under section 12511.

15 Sec. 12508. (1) Upon approval of the application for a
16 campground license, the department, its agent or representative, or
17 a representative of a designated local health department shall
18 issue a campground license, which **THE LICENSEE** shall ~~be displayed~~
19 **DISPLAY** in a conspicuous place on the campground.

20 (2) If the application is not approved, the department, its
21 agent or representative, or a representative of a designated local
22 health department shall give written notice of its denial to the
23 applicant stating reasons for the denial. The applicant may request
24 reconsideration of the application after correction of the reasons
25 for the denial or may request a hearing before the department, or
26 an authorized representative of the department, ~~on the denial~~
27 within ~~10-30~~ days after receipt of the denial. The **DEPARTMENT SHALL**

1 **HOLD THE** hearing ~~shall be held~~ not later than ~~20~~ 10 days after
2 receipt of the request.

3 (3) A person aggrieved by the decision of the department or
4 its authorized representative may appeal to the courts as provided
5 by the administrative procedures act of 1969.

6 **SEC. 12508A. A LICENSEE SHALL DO ALL OF THE FOLLOWING:**

7 (A) IDENTIFY ALL CAMPSITES AND OTHER FACILITIES AS SHOWN ON
8 THE APPROVED SITE PLAN.

9 (B) PROVIDE WRITTEN VERIFICATION THAT THE CONSTRUCTION WAS
10 COMPLETED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE APPROVED SITE PLAN AND
11 SPECIFICATIONS.

12 (C) SUBMIT AN INSPECTION REPORT AND APPROVAL FROM THE
13 ELECTRICAL AUTHORITY OR PLUMBING AUTHORITY THAT HAS JURISDICTION
14 BEFORE THE UTILITY IS INITIALLY PUT INTO SERVICE.

15 (D) VERIFY THAT THE NUMBER OF CAMPSITES IN THE CAMPGROUND IS
16 NOT MORE THAN THE NUMBER AUTHORIZED BY THE LICENSE.

17 **SEC. 12508B. FOR A CAMPGROUND THAT CONSISTS OF ONLY PRIMITIVE**
18 **CAMPSITES, EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED IN THIS SUBSECTION, A**
19 **LICENSEE SHALL ENSURE THAT A POTABLE WATER OUTLET AND A PRIVY FOR**
20 **EACH SEX OR 2 UNISEX PRIVIES ARE AVAILABLE TO SERVE EVERY 25**
21 **PRIMITIVE CAMPSITES OR FRACTION OF 25 PRIMITIVE CAMPSITES. FOR A**
22 **CAMPGROUND THAT CONSISTS OF NOT MORE THAN 10 PRIMITIVE CAMPSITES, A**
23 **LICENSEE SHALL ENSURE THAT A POTABLE WATER OUTLET AND A UNISEX**
24 **PRIVY IS AVAILABLE TO SERVE THOSE CAMPSITES. FOR THE PURPOSES OF**
25 **THIS SECTION, A HAND PUMP WELL IS CONSIDERED A POTABLE WATER**
26 **OUTLET.**

27 **SEC. 12508C. A LICENSEE MAY PROVIDE FOR A GROUP CAMPGROUND**

1 SITE BY SPECIFICALLY DESIGNATING GROUP CAMPING AREAS OR BY GROUPING
2 INDIVIDUAL CAMPSITES TOGETHER TO ACCOMMODATE GROUPS. IF A GROUP
3 CAMPGROUND SITE IS PROVIDED, A LICENSEE SHALL ENSURE ALL OF THE
4 FOLLOWING:

5 (A) IF INDIVIDUAL CAMPSITE WATER CONNECTIONS OR ELECTRICAL
6 CONNECTIONS ARE PROVIDED, THAT A RECREATIONAL UNIT CONNECTS TO THE
7 NEAREST WATER CONNECTION OR ELECTRICAL CONNECTION.

8 (B) THAT NO MORE THAN 1 RECREATIONAL UNIT CONNECTS TO A WATER
9 CONNECTION OR ELECTRICAL CONNECTION.

10 (C) THAT AN UNOBSTRUCTED PATH AT LEAST 4 FEET WIDE SURROUNDS
11 EACH RECREATIONAL UNIT.

12 (D) THAT THE NUMBER OF SANITARY FACILITIES FOR PRIMITIVE
13 CAMPSITES IS PROVIDED AS REQUIRED IN SECTION 12508B OR FOR MODERN
14 CAMPSITES IS PROVIDED AS REQUIRED IN SECTION 12508I, AS APPLICABLE.

15 SEC. 12508D. IF CAMPSITES ARE ACCESSIBLE BY MOTOR VEHICLES, A
16 LICENSEE SHALL PROVIDE A ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY THAT IS NOT LESS THAN 20
17 FEET WIDE. THE LICENSEE SHALL ENSURE THAT THE ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY IS
18 FREE OF OBSTRUCTIONS AT ALL TIMES.

19 SEC. 12508E. (1) A LICENSEE SHALL PROVIDE A POTABLE WATER
20 SUPPLY IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SAFE DRINKING WATER ACT, 1976 PA 399,
21 MCL 325.1001 TO 325.1023.

22 (2) A LICENSEE SHALL ENSURE THAT ITS CAMPGROUND WATER SUPPLY
23 SYSTEM MEETS ALL OF THE FOLLOWING REQUIREMENTS, AS APPLICABLE:

24 (A) HAS AN ABOVE GRADE ROOM THAT HOUSES EQUIPMENT AND SAMPLE
25 TAPS.

26 (B) IS BURIED AT A MINIMUM DEPTH OF 2 FEET OR, IF THE SYSTEM
27 IS DESIGNED FOR WINTER USE, IS BURIED AT A MINIMUM DEPTH THAT IS

1 THE GREATER OF 3.5 FEET OR THE TYPICAL FROST LINE DEPTH.

2 (C) FOR A CAMPSITE ON WHICH A MOBILE HOME OR MANUFACTURED HOME
3 IS CURRENTLY LOCATED, MAINTAINS A MINIMUM RESIDUAL PRESSURE OF 20
4 POUNDS PER SQUARE INCH.

5 (D) IS MADE OF MATERIALS APPROVED BY NSF INTERNATIONAL FOR
6 POTABLE WATER SUPPLY.

7 (3) A LICENSEE SHALL ENSURE THAT IF CAMPSITE WATER CONNECTIONS
8 ARE AVAILABLE, THE CAMPGROUND PROVIDES 1 OR MORE OF THE FOLLOWING:

9 (A) CAMPSITE SEWER CONNECTION.

10 (B) AN ON-SITE SEWAGE PUMP-OUT FACILITY.

11 (C) A SANITARY STATION.

12 (D) AN AGREEMENT WITH A LICENSED SEPTAGE HAULER.

13 (E) A SEEPAGE PIT.

14 SEC. 12508F. (1) A LICENSEE AND ANY PERSON THAT PREPARES A
15 CAMPGROUND SITE PLAN SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL APPLICABLE LAWS AND
16 RULES THAT REGULATE THE METHODS AND FACILITIES FOR THE COLLECTION,
17 TREATMENT, AND DISPOSAL OF SEWAGE AND OTHER WASTEWATER. A LICENSEE
18 SHALL NOT CONSTRUCT A SEWAGE AND WASTEWATER SYSTEM OR MAKE ANY
19 ALTERATIONS THAT REDUCE OR INCREASE THE FLOW CAPACITY OR SYSTEM
20 SERVICE ACCESS POINTS OR THAT MAY JEOPARDIZE THE RELIABILITY OF THE
21 SYSTEM WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN APPROVAL BY THE DEPARTMENT.

22 (2) A LICENSEE SHALL ENSURE THAT ITS SEWAGE AND WASTEWATER
23 SYSTEM MEETS ALL OF THE FOLLOWING REQUIREMENTS, AS APPLICABLE:

24 (A) IS DESIGNED TO HANDLE THE MINIMUM ESTIMATED DAILY LIQUID
25 FLOWS AS FOLLOWS:

26 (i) FOR CAMPSITES THAT HAVE WATER AND SEWER OUTLETS AVAILABLE
27 TO EACH CAMPSITE, 40 GALLONS PER CAMPSITE.

1 (ii) FOR CAMPSITES SERVED BY SERVICE BUILDINGS, 40 GALLONS PER
2 CAMPSITE.

3 (iii) FOR PRIMITIVE CAMPSITES OPERATED IN CONJUNCTION WITH
4 MODERN CAMPSITES, 30 GALLONS PER CAMPSITE.

5 (iv) FOR CAMPSITES WITH SINGLE SECTIONAL MOBILE HOMES AND PARK
6 MODEL RECREATIONAL UNITS, 75 GALLONS PER CAMPSITE.

7 (B) PROVIDES ALL OF THE FOLLOWING, AS APPLICABLE:

8 (i) A SEWER RISER TRAP, LOCATED AT A CAMPSITE. IF THE SERVICE
9 RISER TRAP IS DESIGNED FOR WINTER USE, IT MUST BE TRAPPED BELOW THE
10 FROST LINE.

11 (ii) A SEWER RISER TRAP CONSTRUCTED OF CAST IRON OR RIGID
12 PLASTIC PIPE AS APPROVED BY THE PLUMBING DIVISION OF THE DEPARTMENT
13 OF LICENSING AND REGULATORY AFFAIRS.

14 (iii) A SEWER RISER TRAP THAT DOES NOT EXTEND MORE THAN 2
15 INCHES ABOVE THE SURROUNDING GROUND SURFACE.

16 (iv) A SEWER RISER TRAP THAT IS CAPPED WHEN NOT IN USE.

17 (v) A GRAVITY SANITARY SEWER THAT HAS SUFFICIENT CAPACITY TO
18 ACCOMMODATE THE MAXIMUM HOURLY FLOW FROM THE PORTION OF THE
19 CAMPGROUND BEING SERVED AND IS NOT LESS THAN 4 INCHES IN DIAMETER.
20 IF THE GRAVITY SANITARY SEWER IS DESIGNED FOR WINTER USE, THE
21 GRAVITY SANITARY SEWER MUST BE BURIED AT A MINIMUM DEPTH THAT IS
22 THE GREATER OF 3.5 FEET OR THE TYPICAL FROST LINE DEPTH.

23 (vi) A GRAVITY SANITARY SEWER THAT IS INSTALLED WITH
24 SUFFICIENT SLOPE TO MAINTAIN A VELOCITY OF 2 FEET PER SECOND AT
25 DESIGN FLOW.

26 (vii) IF THE GRAVITY SANITARY SEWER IS LESS THAN 10 INCHES IN
27 DIAMETER, CLEANOUTS ARE LOCATED AT THE UPPER TERMINAL OF EACH SEWER

1 LINE AND AT ALL CHANGES IN GRADE, SIZE, AND DIRECTION OF MORE THAN
2 45 DEGREES.

3 (viii) IF THE GRAVITY SANITARY SEWER IS 10 INCHES IN DIAMETER
4 OR LARGER, MANHOLES ARE LOCATED AT ALL CHANGES IN GRADE, SIZE, AND
5 DIRECTION. THE DEPARTMENT MAY EXEMPT A CAMPGROUND FROM THIS
6 REQUIREMENT IF IT PROVIDES A WRITTEN STATEMENT FROM A QUALIFIED
7 ENGINEER THAT MANHOLES ARE NOT NECESSARY FOR PROPER ACCESS AND
8 MAINTENANCE OF THE SYSTEM.

9 (3) A LICENSEE AND ANY PERSON THAT DESIGNS THE CAMPGROUND
10 SEWAGE AND WASTEWATER SYSTEM SHALL SPECIFY LEAKAGE TESTS FOR THE
11 PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION OF SANITARY SEWERS.

12 (4) A LICENSEE SHALL ENSURE THAT A SANITARY SEWER OR
13 INDIVIDUAL SEWER SERVICE LINE IS NOT LAID WITHIN 10 FEET
14 HORIZONTALLY OF A WATERLINE. IF A SANITARY SEWER LINE CROSSES A
15 WATERLINE, A LICENSEE SHALL ENSURE A MINIMUM OF 12 INCHES OF CLEAR
16 VERTICAL ISOLATION BETWEEN THE SEWER LINE AND THE WATERLINE. IF IT
17 IS NOT FEASIBLE TO HAVE A MINIMUM OF 12 INCHES OF VERTICAL
18 ISOLATION, THEN A SEWER LINE MUST BE ENCASED IN CONCRETE OR OTHER
19 MATERIALS APPROVED BY THE DEPARTMENT FOR 5 FEET ON EACH SIDE OF THE
20 CROSSING. A LICENSEE SHALL ENSURE THAT A WATERLINE HAS NO JOINTS
21 WITHIN 10 FEET OF THE POINT OF CROSSING OVER OR UNDER A SEWER LINE.

22 SEC. 12508G. A LICENSEE SHALL ENSURE THAT ITS CAMPGROUND SOIL
23 ABSORPTION SYSTEM AND THE SYSTEM'S DESIGN AND LOCATION PROVIDE
24 ISOLATION OF NOT LESS THAN 10 FEET FROM CAMPSITES AND PROTECTION
25 FROM VEHICULAR TRAFFIC OR OTHER POSSIBLE DAMAGE. A LICENSEE SHALL
26 ENSURE THAT A SOIL ABSORPTION SYSTEM IS NOT PLACED IN ANY OF THE
27 FOLLOWING LOCATIONS:

1 (A) BENEATH A PERMANENT STRUCTURE.

2 (B) WHERE THE SOIL IS UNSTABLE OR UNSETTLED.

3 (C) IN MUCK OR PEAT SOILS.

4 (D) UNDER A ROADWAY, PARKING LOT, OR PAVED AREA.

5 (E) WITHIN 100 FEET OF A LAKE OR STREAM.

6 (F) IN THE PATH OF A CATCHMENT AREA OF SURFACE RUNOFF.

7 (G) WHERE A HIGH GROUNDWATER TABLE IS CLOSER THAN 2 FEET TO
8 THE GROUND SURFACE.

9 (H) WITHIN 75 FEET OF A WELL.

10 (I) WHERE SURFACE FLOODING MAY OCCUR.

11 (J) WHERE THE PERCOLATION RATE EXCEEDS 30 MINUTES FOR WATER TO
12 FALL 1 INCH.

13 SEC. 12508H. (1) A LICENSEE AND ANY PERSON THAT DESIGNS THE
14 CAMPGROUND SITE PLAN SHALL ENSURE THAT SEPTIC AND DOSING TANKS AND
15 SEWAGE PUMPING SYSTEMS ARE DESIGNED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ACCEPTED
16 ENGINEERING PRACTICE.

17 (2) A LICENSEE THAT PROPOSES TO DISCHARGE TREATED WASTEWATER
18 TO THE WATERS OF THIS STATE SHALL COMPLY WITH THE NATURAL RESOURCES
19 AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION ACT, 1994 PA 451, MCL 324.101 TO
20 324.90106.

21 (3) A LICENSEE SHALL ENSURE ALL OF THE FOLLOWING:

22 (A) THAT THE INTERIOR OF A PRIVY, OUTHOUSE, OR PORTABLE PRIVY
23 IN USE AT ITS CAMPGROUND IS DESIGNED FOR SELF-CONTAINMENT AND IS
24 MADE OF SMOOTH, EASILY CLEANED, NONABSORBENT MATERIAL.

25 (B) THAT ALL VENT OPENINGS AND WINDOWS OF A PRIVY, OUTHOUSE,
26 OR PORTABLE PRIVY IN USE AT ITS CAMPGROUND ARE SCREENED.

27 (C) THAT IT HAS A SERVICE CONTRACT WITH A LICENSED SEPTAGE

1 HAULER TO SERVICE ALL PRIVIES, OUTHOUSES, OR PORTABLE PRIVIES IN
2 USE AT ITS CAMPGROUND OR THAT IT HAS THE CAPACITY TO HAUL AND DUMP
3 SEWAGE FROM ALL PRIVIES, OUTHOUSES, OR PORTABLE PRIVIES IN USE AT
4 ITS CAMPGROUND TO AN ON-SITE FACILITY.

5 (4) FOR A CAMPGROUND USING SEEPAGE PITS, A LICENSEE SHALL DO
6 ALL OF THE FOLLOWING:

7 (A) OBTAIN A PERMIT OR VERIFICATION FROM THE LOCAL HEALTH
8 DEPARTMENT THAT SOIL PERCOLATION RATES ARE BELOW 30 MINUTES FOR
9 WATER TO FALL 1 INCH WHERE SEEPAGE PITS ARE LOCATED.

10 (B) PROVIDE A MINIMUM 50-GALLON CAPACITY SURROUNDED BY CLEAN
11 GRAVEL.

12 (C) PROVIDE A RISER FEED HOLE OF 1 INCH OR LESS.

13 (D) ONLY ALLOW CLEAN WATER OR GRAY WATER FROM SINKS,
14 LAUNDRIES, AND SHOWERS INTO A SEEPAGE PIT.

15 (E) ENSURE THAT A SEEPAGE PIT IS NOT LOCATED WITHIN 75 FEET OF
16 A WELL.

17 (5) FOR A CAMPGROUND THAT USES A BURIED STORAGE TANK, VAULT,
18 OR CERTIFIED HOLDING TANK, A LICENSEE SHALL PROVIDE 1 OR MORE OF
19 THE FOLLOWING:

20 (A) AN ON-SITE SEWAGE PUMP-OUT FACILITY.

21 (B) AN AGREEMENT WITH A LICENSED SEPTAGE HAULER.

22 (C) OTHER MEANS OF SEPTAGE REMOVAL APPROVED BY THE DEPARTMENT.

23 SEC. 12508I. (1) A LICENSEE SHALL ENSURE THAT A SERVICE
24 BUILDING IS CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE STATE OR
25 LOCAL BUILDING CODES.

26 (2) EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED IN SUBSECTION (4), (5), OR

27 (6) AND SECTION 12508B, A LICENSEE SHALL ENSURE THAT ITS CAMPGROUND

1 COMPLIES WITH THE FOLLOWING MINIMUM NUMBER OF FIXTURES, AS
 2 APPLICABLE:

3	SITES	TOILETS		URINALS	LAVATORIES	
4		M	F	M	M	F
5	1-15	1	1	1	1	1
6	16-30	1	2	1	2	2
7	31-45	2	2	1	3	3
8	46-60	2	3	2	3	3
9	61-100	3	4	2	4	4
10	101-130	4	5	3	5	5
11	131-160	5	6	3	6	6
12	161-190	6	7	3	7	7
13	191-220	7	8	4	8	8
14	221-250	8	9	4	9	9
15	251-280	9	10	4	10	10
16	281-310	10	11	5	11	11
17	311-340	11	12	5	12	12
18	341-370	12	13	5	13	13
19	371-400	13	14	5	14	14
20	401-430	14	15	6	15	15
21	431-460	15	16	6	16	16
22	461-490	16	17	6	17	17
23	491-520	17	18	7	18	18

24 (3) FOR A CAMPGROUND THAT HAS MORE THAN 520 CAMPSITES, A
 25 LICENSEE SHALL PROVIDE 1 ADDITIONAL TOILET AND LAVATORY FOR EACH
 26 SEX FOR EACH ADDITIONAL 30 CAMPSITES OR FRACTION OF 30 CAMPSITES

1 AND 1 ADDITIONAL MEN'S URINAL FOR EACH ADDITIONAL 100 CAMPSITES.

2 (4) FOR A CAMPGROUND WITH MODERN CAMPSITES, IF ALL CAMPSITES
3 ARE PROVIDED WITH WATER AND SEWER SERVICES AND IF OCCUPANCY IS
4 LIMITED TO RECREATIONAL UNITS CONNECTED TO THE WATER AND SEWER
5 SYSTEMS, THE CAMPGROUND IS EXEMPT FROM THE FIXTURE SCHEDULE IN
6 SUBSECTION (2). THE LICENSEE SHALL ENSURE THAT, AT A MINIMUM, 1
7 WATER FLUSH TOILET AND 1 LAVATORY ARE PROVIDED.

8 (5) FOR A CAMPGROUND WITH MODERN CAMPSITES, IF ONLY A PORTION
9 OF THE CAMPSITES ARE PROVIDED WITH WATER AND SEWER SERVICES, A
10 LICENSEE SHALL ENSURE THAT THE FIXTURE SCHEDULE SPECIFIED IN
11 SUBSECTION (2) IS COMPLIED WITH FOR SITES THAT DO NOT HAVE WATER
12 AND SEWER SERVICES. THE PORTION OF A CAMPGROUND THAT IS CURRENTLY
13 OCCUPIED BY MOBILE HOMES OR MANUFACTURED HOMES THAT HAVE SEWER AND
14 WATER CONNECTIONS IS EXEMPT FROM THE FIXTURE SCHEDULE SPECIFIED
15 SUBSECTION (2).

16 (6) FOR A CAMPGROUND THAT HAS PRIMITIVE CAMPSITES ADJACENT TO
17 AND IN CONJUNCTION WITH MODERN CAMPSITES THAT ARE SUBJECT TO
18 SUBSECTION (2), A LICENSEE SHALL PROVIDE AN ADDITIONAL TOILET AND
19 LAVATORY FOR EACH SEX FOR EVERY 50 PRIMITIVE CAMPSITES OR FRACTION
20 OF 50 PRIMITIVE CAMPSITES.

21 SEC. 12508J. (1) EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED IN THIS SECTION,
22 A LICENSEE SHALL ENSURE THAT ITS CAMPGROUND CONTAINS AT LEAST 1
23 SANITARY STATION OF APPROVED DESIGN. THIS SUBSECTION DOES NOT APPLY
24 TO A CAMPGROUND WITH MODERN CAMPSITES THAT ARE PROVIDED WITH
25 CONNECTIONS TO THE CAMPGROUND'S WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM OR A
26 CAMPGROUND WITH PRIMITIVE CAMPSITES THAT ARE SERVED SOLELY BY HAND
27 PUMP WELLS.

1 (2) A LICENSEE SHALL ENSURE THAT ITS CAMPGROUND SANITARY
2 STATION IS DESIGNED AND MAINTAINED TO PREVENT CONTAMINATION FROM
3 BEING INTRODUCED INTO THE FRESH WATER STORAGE TANKS OR CAMPGROUND
4 WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM.

5 (3) EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED IN THIS SUBSECTION, A
6 LICENSEE SHALL PROVIDE SEPARATE TOWERS FOR FILLING FRESH WATER
7 STORAGE TANKS AND RINSING SEWAGE SPILLS AT ITS SEWAGE DUMPING
8 FACILITY. A LICENSEE THAT PROVIDES INDIVIDUAL WATER CONNECTIONS FOR
9 ALL OF THE CAMPSITES AT ITS CAMPGROUND IS EXEMPT FROM THE
10 REQUIREMENT UNDER THIS SUBSECTION TO PROVIDE A SEPARATE TOWER FOR
11 FILLING FRESH WATER STORAGE TANKS.

12 (4) A LICENSEE SHALL PROVIDE ALL OF THE FOLLOWING:

13 (A) A VACUUM BREAKER INSTALLED AT THE HIGH POINT OF EACH
14 TOWER.

15 (B) AN AUTOMATIC DEVICE INSTALLED TO KEEP HOSES OFF THE
16 GROUND.

17 (C) A FOOT-OPERATED HATCH INSTALLED TO COVER THE SANITARY
18 STATE SEWER RISER WHEN NOT IN USE.

19 (D) SIGNS PLACED AT A SANITARY STATION TO IDENTIFY ITS PURPOSE
20 AND GIVE INSTRUCTIONS FOR ITS PROPER USE.

21 SEC. 12508K. (1) A LICENSEE SHALL ENSURE THAT THE PLUMBING IN
22 ITS CAMPGROUND COMPLIES WITH APPLICABLE STATE LAWS OR LOCAL
23 ORDINANCES INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE STATE PLUMBING ACT,
24 2002 PA 733, MCL 338.3511 TO 338.3569.

25 (2) A LICENSEE SHALL ENSURE THAT THE DISPOSAL OF GARBAGE AND
26 REFUSE IS IN ACCORDANCE WITH STATE LAW AND LOCAL ORDINANCES. A
27 LICENSEE SHALL PROVIDE A SUFFICIENT NUMBER OF CONTAINERS FOR THE

1 STORAGE OF GARBAGE AND OTHER REFUSE. A LICENSEE SHALL ENSURE THAT
2 GARBAGE AND REFUSE ARE COLLECTED AND DISPOSED OF AS OFTEN AS
3 NECESSARY TO PREVENT OVERFLOW, NUISANCE, OR ODOR, BUT IN NO EVENT
4 LESS THAN ONCE EACH WEEK. A LICENSEE SHALL ENSURE THAT GARBAGE AND
5 REFUSE CONTAINERS ARE MAINTAINED IN A CLEAN AND SANITARY CONDITION.

6 (3) A LICENSEE SHALL ENSURE THAT AN ELECTRICAL INSTALLATION IN
7 ITS CAMPGROUND COMPLIES WITH NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODES. A LICENSEE
8 SHALL ENSURE THAT NOT MORE THAN 1 RECREATIONAL UNIT IS SERVED BY 1
9 ELECTRICAL OUTLET.

10 (4) A LICENSEE SHALL ENSURE THAT A SWIMMING POOL IN ITS
11 CAMPGROUND COMPLIES WITH SECTIONS 12521 TO 12546.

12 (5) UPON THE WRITTEN REQUEST OF A LICENSEE, THE DEPARTMENT MAY
13 GRANT A WRITTEN VARIANCE IF THE DEPARTMENT DETERMINES ALL OF THE
14 FOLLOWING:

15 (A) THAT STRICT COMPLIANCE WITH THE LAW WOULD CAUSE UNUSUAL
16 AND PRACTICAL DIFFICULTIES AND HARDSHIPS.

17 (B) THAT THE VARIANCE WOULD NOT AFFECT THE HEALTH, SAFETY, OR
18 WELFARE OF THE PUBLIC OR OF CAMPGROUND GUESTS.

19 (C) THAT THE SPIRIT AND INTENT OF THE LAW CAN BE MAINTAINED IF
20 THE VARIANCE IS GRANTED.

21 Sec. 12509. A ~~EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED IN THIS SECTION, A~~
22 ~~campground license shall~~ IS not be transferred ~~TRANSFERABLE~~ to
23 another person. ~~except where the~~ IF A transferee complies with all
24 the requirements to be licensed under sections 12501 to 12516 and
25 ~~upon submission of~~ SUBMITS an application and the license transfer
26 fee as prescribed in sections 12506 and 12506a, THE DEPARTMENT
27 SHALL TRANSFER THE LICENSE TO THE TRANSFEREE.

1 Sec. 12510. ~~(1) If a representative of the designated local~~
 2 ~~health department performs annual inspections of campgrounds that~~
 3 ~~are applying for a new license, renewal license, or temporary~~
 4 ~~license and have submitted the applicable license fee to the~~
 5 ~~department, the department shall approve payments of \$25.00 per~~
 6 ~~campground to that local health department.~~

7 ~~—— (2) The state treasurer shall make the payments upon receipt~~
 8 ~~of approval from the department.~~

9 ~~—— (3) A~~ **SUBJECT TO THIS SECTION, A** designated local health
 10 department may collect additional fees as provided under section
 11 2444 from the owner of a campground for services provided under
 12 sections 12501 to 12516. **IF THE DESIGNATED LOCAL HEALTH DEPARTMENT**
 13 **COLLECTS FEES UNDER THIS SECTION, THE FEES MUST NOT BE LESS THAN**
 14 **\$75.00 AND NOT MORE THAN \$1.00 PER CAMPSITE UP TO A MAXIMUM OF**
 15 **\$500.00.**

16 Sec. 12511. ~~The department, with the advice, assistance, and~~
 17 ~~approval of the advisory board, shall promulgate rules regarding~~
 18 ~~sanitation and safety standards for campgrounds and public health.~~
 19 ~~The rules shall recognize and provide controls for different types~~
 20 ~~of campgrounds.~~ **THE DEPARTMENT SHALL PROMULGATE RULES FOR TEMPORARY**
 21 **CAMPGROUNDS THAT DO BOTH OF THE FOLLOWING:**

22 **(A) PROVIDE SANITATION AND SAFETY STANDARDS.**

23 **(B) RECOGNIZE AND PROVIDE CONTROLS FOR DIFFERENT TYPES OF**
 24 **TEMPORARY CAMPGROUNDS.**

25 Sec. 12512. (1) The department, its agent or representative,
 26 or a representative of a designated local health department shall
 27 give written notice to a licensee who fails to comply with sections

1 12501 to 12516 or a rule promulgated ~~under~~ **TO IMPLEMENT** those
 2 sections. The notice ~~shall~~ **MUST** specify the particular violations
 3 and a date by which the licensee ~~shall~~ **MUST** comply. The **DEPARTMENT,**
 4 **ITS AGENT OR REPRESENTATIVE, OR A REPRESENTATIVE OF A DESIGNATED**
 5 **LOCAL HEALTH DEPARTMENT SHALL ESTABLISH THE** time given for
 6 compliance ~~shall depend upon~~ **UNDER THIS SUBSECTION BASED ON** the
 7 nature of the violation.

8 (2) If the licensee does not comply within the time specified
 9 **FOR COMPLIANCE UNDER SUBSECTION (1),** the department, its agent or
 10 representative, or a representative of a designated local health
 11 department may, in accordance with the administrative procedures
 12 act of 1969, revoke the license. If the licensee files a request
 13 for a hearing within 60 calendar days after the licensee receives
 14 notice of revocation, the department shall hold a hearing.

15 (3) ~~A~~ **THE DEPARTMENT, ITS AGENT OR REPRESENTATIVE, OR A**
 16 **REPRESENTATIVE OF A DESIGNATED LOCAL HEALTH DEPARTMENT SHALL NOT**
 17 **REISSUE A** license revoked under subsection (2) ~~shall not be~~
 18 ~~reissued by the department, its agent or representative, or a~~
 19 ~~representative of a designated local health department until it has~~
 20 ~~been determined~~ **DETERMINES** that the violations have been corrected.

21 (4) A licensee aggrieved by a decision of the department, its
 22 agent or representative, or a representative of a designated local
 23 health department to revoke the license may appeal to a court of
 24 competent jurisdiction as provided by the administrative procedures
 25 act of 1969.

26 Sec. 12514. (1) ~~An~~ **A LICENSEE SHALL POST IN THE CAMPGROUND A**
 27 **NOTICE INDICATING HOW THE MANAGER ON DUTY CAN BE CONTACTED. A**

1 LICENSEE SHALL HAVE A MANAGER OR PERSON IN CHARGE ON SITE WHEN THE
2 CAMPGROUND IS OCCUPIED.

3 (2) A LICENSEE SHALL EITHER POST IN THE CAMPGROUND THE
4 TELEPHONE NUMBERS FOR POLICE, FIRE, AND MEDICAL ASSISTANCE OR
5 PROVIDE GUESTS WITH THAT INFORMATION AT CHECK-IN.

6 (3) A LICENSEE SHALL GIVE THE DEPARTMENT, ITS agent or
7 representative, ~~of the department~~ or a representative of a
8 designated local health department ~~shall have access during all~~
9 ~~reasonable hours~~ to a campground for the purpose of inspection or
10 otherwise carrying out sections 12501 to 12516 **DURING ALL NORMAL**
11 **BUSINESS HOURS, MONDAY THROUGH FRIDAY.**

12 Sec. 12515. (1) Sections 12501 to 12516 do not apply to a
13 campground used solely as a children's camp licensed by the
14 department of ~~social~~-**HUMAN** services or to properties owned by a
15 person licensed ~~pursuant to~~-**UNDER** part 124, and used for housing
16 seasonal agricultural workers employed by that person. A campground
17 licensed under sections 12501 to 12516 ~~shall~~-**MUST** not be used for
18 the housing of seasonal agricultural workers unless also licensed
19 under part 124.

20 (2) Sections 12501 to 12516 ~~shall~~-**DO** not ~~be construed to~~
21 ~~interfere in any way~~ with the enforcement of sanitary controls by a
22 health officer ~~having~~-**THAT HAS** jurisdiction in the area.

23 (3) Sections 12501 to 12516 do not relieve a person from
24 complying with local ordinances governing building permits or with
25 a code, regulation, or ordinance not in conflict with sections
26 12501 to 12516.

27 Sec. 12516. (1) A person ~~who~~-**THAT** violates sections 12501 to

1 12515 FOR MORE THAN 10 DAYS AFTER NOTIFICATION BY THE DEPARTMENT
2 AND DOES NOT RESPOND OR MAKE A REASONABLE EFFORT TO CORRECT THE
3 VIOLATIONS is guilty of a misdemeanor.

4 (2) Notwithstanding the existence of any other remedy, the
5 department, its agent or representative, or a representative of a
6 designated local health department may maintain an action in the
7 name of ~~the~~ **THIS** state for an injunction against a person to
8 restrain or prevent the construction, enlargement, or alteration of
9 a campground without a permit, or the operation or conduct of a
10 campground without a license.

11 Enacting section 1. Section 12513 of the public health code,
12 1978 PA 368, MCL 333.12513, is repealed.

13 Enacting section 2. This amendatory act takes effect 90 days
14 after the date it is enacted into law.